C Greenhead College

Be exceptional

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION

Minutes of the Finance & Estates Committee meeting held in M11

Govs present:

In attendance:

Apologies:

Monday 30 September 2024, 4.30pm

Adrian Barrass; Chris Kneale; Connie Laing; John Holroyd
(Chair); Lisa Wilkinson (from 16.40); Mo Bunter (Principal);

Mohammed Usman (via Teams); Richard Armstrong

Lauren Metcalfe (DOFF); Sarah Walters (DOEO); Mark Mitchell

(Assistant Principal); Sharon Roper (Clerk)
None

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

1. Welcome,
apologies,
chairing

Prior to the meeting start, SWA led a site walk for governors
to show them some of the estates works that have been
carried out recently.

JHO welcomed participants.

Apologies as above.

2. Declarations

No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest.

3. Minutes 17/6/24

3.1 Finance & Estates minutes 17/6/24, previously
circulated.

Minutes approved by Committee, signed by Chair, returned
to Clerk for filing.

3.2 Matters arising not covered on agenda:

Matters arising/outstanding actions document, previously
circulated.

1. (17/6/24 Min 14.) Governor review of the IT structure.
MBR asked how governors want this reporting. JHO said
governors want assurance that it was worthwhile and does
not want an open-ended expanding cost without review of
the restructure.

RAR suggested a report on the impact of the investment on
the qualitative improvement for staff and students (for Q&S)
and the value for money for the investment (for F&E).

JHO said the IT restructure was a proposal by PDI, and the
IT restructure review can be looked at via his appraisal with
PDI demonstrating how the impact of the restructure has
been measured.

Clerk

Clerk

MBR

Page 1 of 10




2.(7/5/24 Min 8.5) CKN asked for an update on the Cooksey
heating issues, SWA said that modelling results are
imminent and then a solution will be taken forward.

4. Finance

4.1 F&E committee members noted May and June
management accounts and narrative, and reviewed July
management accounts and narrative, all previously
circulated.

LME summarised key points:

1. July’s accounts have gone to the auditors, and these are
the basis of their current audit work; the finance team are
still processing adjustments.

2. Finished with an overall surplus of £1,037,000, and
£558,000 cash surplus.

The surplus variances included an additional pension grant,
release of grant income, higher bank interest and extra
learner support monies.

RAR asked why the additional learner support monies was
higher — LME did not set this budget, there was an extra
£40,000 due to more students with additional needs, CPA
(AP) anticipates the same level of students will qualify for
ALS monies this academic year.

RAR asked if this income feeds into expenditure for ALS — it
does, the majority goes towards ALS staffing. MBR said the
college must demonstrate how the money is spent, and any
excess cannot be held over.

3. Pay was over budget by £266,000.

Teaching staff costs are 73.2% of the total staffing costs,
this was over budget by £138,000, and was mainly driven
by the pension increase, pension grant received does offset
this.

Most of the remainder is overtime as staff are asked to
cover absences. Budgeting for this should improve in this
AY.

4. Support staff costs are 26.4% of the total pay costs.

On advice by the relevant bodies the Learner Support roles
were regraded and moved up the pay scale. Learner
support pay costs have an overspend of £30,000,

5. Admin is under budget, but this counters the premises
budget. The previous role was split into two new roles; this
is an allocation issue.

6. Payroll costs are 69.5% of total income at year end.

In next year’s budget the pay costs rise to 78%, 5% is
driven by the increase in pay, 3% by the extra staff recruited
and 2% relates to increased pension costs.

7. RAR gave an update on the unfunded pay rise, there is
no additional funding for Sixth Form Colleges while Sixth
Form Academies will get extra funding. SFCA have taken
this to the Secretary of State who has not shifted their
position. Funding for sixth form colleges would cost £5.3
million. SFCA have consulted lawyers who think this is
discrimination and unlawful. SFCA will challenge the
government on a legal basis.

Page 2 of 10




CKN asked about timelines — it is all long term, MBR said
that SFCA are expecting an announcement in the Spring
Spending review for FE and sixth form colleges which will
affect the following two or three years, any announcement
this October will be for next year.

RAR added that the terms and conditions of the teachers’
pay review body are being looked at.

JHO asked who is taking the legal action— SFCA, on behalf
of sixth form colleges.

RAR said that ESFA have discretionary money to fund in-
year college growth.

CKN asked if there is a cost to GC for the legal action — no,
it is part of the membership fees. JHO asked how much
membership is — it is approximately £3000.

8. In non-pay:

Bursary fund is an overspend due to the terms of the old
catering contract. This should balance next year.
Enrichment was an overspend due to transport issues;
student subs may be increased this AY.

Legal fees were overspent due to the photocopying
contract, and legal advice regarding a local resident.

LME and SWA continue to focus on reprographics and
understanding the contract.

Exams are underspent, and LME anticipates that next year
might also be underspent due to the cautious approach of
the exams manager.

Utilities are underspent, the budget was set on previous
rates and the old estate, Hirst is carbon and cost neutral.
Premises costs look under budget although the auditors
have allowed for some items to be moved into 2023/24
accounts so that the current year’s budget can be
protected.

9. JHO clarified that in these accounts’ costs are increasing
and the surplus reducing — LME confirmed this saying she
is trying to use the surplus and protect 2024/25 which is a
deficit budget, the surplus has reduced to just over £1
million.

10. ABA asked about GC’s banking arrangements and the
issues students have with Barclays. LME met Barclays in
the summer and advised them of the students concerns,
Barclays gave a counter argument and referred to their
record with sustainability and have offered to speak to
students to try and smooth the relationship. LME feels they
should meet with GCSA initially.

JHO asked about Barclays paying interest on GC’s balance
held with them — LME is looking into the options they gave
her together with other providers.

JHO added that there are commercial aspects to the
relationship due to penalties with the loan if we leave them.
11. RAR asked if Salix funding is available for solar panels
for the main building when it is repaired. SWA said a
decarbonisation strategy survey has been completed: the
boilers are a no-go because they are new but solar panels
is an option for GC. SWA is awaiting the report and will

LME

LME

Page 3 of 10




investigate the funding options and get a project ready to
submit.

RAR asked if the investment in battery arrays is effective
and value for money — SWA is waiting for access to the
portal with all the Hirst energy efficiency information.

12. CKN asked for an error on the value of the MUGA to be
changed from £290 to £290,000.

13. JHO asked about the Pension Scheme adjustment —
this has been processed and is in the draft year end
accounts presented to the auditors. It is a pension asset,
but the asset cannot be recognised in the accounts
because there is an asset ceiling of zero.

LME will share the pension documents with JHO.

4.2 Forecast update, previously circulated —
1. The update was produced in response to the pay
increase of 5.5% for teachers, the budget was 4% and there
will be no government contribution.
2. The support staff pay award budgeted is 4%, this has not
been changed in the forecast, the expectation is that the
pay rise will be 5% with an additional one day of annual
leave.
Staff with term time contracts will receive an increase in
salary instead of an additional day off.
3. Assumptions include:

e CIF funding will be awarded and capitalised.
New build expenses will stop after 2025/26.
£200,000 will be spent annually on capital.
Hirst remodelling will be capitalised.
2900 students are recruited.
Five or six extra teachers will be recruited for
2025/26 to support the extra classes in Hirst.
4. Due to an increase in student numbers and staff there
will be another year of deficit due to lagged funding and
after three years this will recover.
5. The college will be categorised as ‘good’ rather than
‘outstanding’, staff pay as a percentage of turnover will not
drop below 76%.
6. The college might receive ‘growth’ money during this
period.
7. LWI asked how many students are on roll this academic
year — there are currently 2765.
JHO asked if enrolment was a success — MBR said the
target was not met, but the online enrolment process
worked. Next year it will be fully online.
LME said the student numbers achieved what the forecast
needed them to be.
LWI asked if any students have dropped out — some have,
which is the norm every year. Partner school students have
increased, probably because the local partner schools
underperformed in GCSEs.
8. CLA asked about the apprentice levy and was surprised
how low it is — LME will check with the HR Director.

SWA

SWA

LME

LME

LME

Page 4 of 10




ABA asked if GC uses the levy — LME said GC does use it,
but it is not utilised at the same rate as we pay out. MBR
said that many courses that were funded from it have been
removed.

CLA said that the college can apply for a refund — LME will
investigate.

ABA asked which staff use the apprenticeship levy — it is
open to everyone. MBR said that if an apprentice is
recruited, if they meet the job standards, they must be
offered a permanent job, which will increase staffing costs.
9. JHO asked about bank interest which he feels will reduce
rather than stay level — LME has kept it at the same level for
now.

10. JHO asked about utility costs reducing - a new
electricity contract will start in April 2025 at a significantly
lower rate. The gas contract expires in April 2027, and it will
reduce because better rates are available.

11. JHO asked if sixth form colleges will be driven to
academise due to the unfunded pay rise of 5.5% - the
consensus was yes.

4.3. Fixed Asset Register, previously circulated —

1. This is now in place, and it agrees with the prior year’'s
accounts and before an adjustment of £45,000,
depreciation agreed with the management accounts.

2. LME is satisfied with the net book values of the assets.
3. Further work is required on the costs; in the signed
annual accounts the cost value is much higher. LME is
going to CLT to discuss what can be disposed of in this
year’'s accounts, and next year will be high.

JHO asked if this is a loss that will hit the profit and loss
account — LME said it will be fully depreciated so will not
affect the p&l.

4. JHO asked if the net book value of the equipment agrees
with the set of accounts sent to the auditors — it does, year-
end adjustments have been made since the accounts were
issued to F&E.

LME

5. KPI results
2023/24 and KPI
setting 2024/25

LME summarised the KPI results achieved in 2023/24 and
the KPIs to be set for 2024/25.

1. The KPIs are based on the updated draft forecasts.

2. RAR asked about teaching staff costs as a percentage of
total staff costs increasing by only 0.2% - LME will check
her calculations and update F&E.

3. MMI asked if teaching costs (without support staff costs)
against total income are measured — RAR said several sets
of figures were reported historically before the reporting was
streamlined.

MBR said the FE Commissioner asks for the total staffing
costs during their annual visit.

4. RAR asked for benchmarking data around teaching staff
costs against total staff costs especially against colleges
who are receiving teacher pay increase funding. LME will

Page 5 of 10




contact her network, NORVIC colleagues and SFCA for
their data. MBR said that SFCA will be able to filter the
responses from sixth form colleges and academies.

CLA asked if payroll costs include ‘on’ costs — yes it does,
teaching ‘on’ costs are 40% and support staff 34%.

5. LME will split out the teaching and support staff in the

payroll KPI, this is in addition to the existing proposed KPIs.

6. JHO asked how the cash in hand days for 2024/25 have
been calculated. The cash flow and operating expenses
were used; it is a similar level to last year.

7. CLA asked if the KPIs are rolled over each year — they
are.

8. ABA asked for narratives to explain the changes to the
KPIs.

F&E committee members approved the KPIs for 2024/25
subject to LME looking into the 0.2% increase in teaching
staff costs as a percentage of total staff costs.

LME

LME

LME

6. Estate
Management
Update

F&E committee members reviewed the Estates report, and
noted the Rostron Building survey and Highfields valuation,
all previously circulated.

SWA highlighted the following:

1. The report details the significant amount of work
undertaken over the summer holidays and she praised the
premises team for managing the heavy workload.

SWA expects this level of work annually to maintain the
estate.

Feedback on the improvements from staff and students is
positive.

2. Strong relationships were built with the new contractors
used. Seven toilet blocks were installed and working ready
for the start of term.

3. SWA has updated the Asset Management Plan.

From this AY SWA and the Premises Manager will conduct
a weekly site walk which will pick up required repairs and
maintenance and larger projects will inform the asset
management plan.

The asset management plan will include a five-year IT
rolling programme.

4. Currently awaiting the Cooksey survey regarding the
heating issues.

5. The Rostron building survey was better than expected
and the lifespan is at least 10 years provided the building is
maintained. KNO suggested it will last longer.

JHO asked why the surveyors did not access the flat roof —
it was observed from a distance; the roof can be viewed
from Hirst building.

SWA said a roofing company have been to Rostron
because there are issues with leaks — exploratory work is
underway to check if it is a build-up of condensation
between the void between the sealed house and the roof,

Page 6 of 10




ventilation might need to be installed. It also happens on
sunny days, so is not a leak.

6. JHO asked about the cracking in Rostron which might
have been caused by the building work — the cracks were
there before the work started. GT installed space
measurers in the cracks to check the building works did not
exacerbate it, to date the readings haven’t shown any
increases. The Rostron survey said the cracking is cosmetic
not structural.

CLA asked if a second opinion survey is needed for Rostron
— SWA is happy with one survey.

7. Highfields — this is confidential.

8. Hirst — this is confidential.

9. ABA asked how the summer premises work is staffed —
the premises term have an all-year contract, key staff did
not take time off during the summer break, some staff like to
take time off when holidays are cheaper, and contractors
were also used appropriately.

10. RAR made governors aware that LME has had three
sets of auditors in over the last month and has also serviced
F&E and CDC committee.

MBR thanked LME and SWA for their phenomenal work
since February and all F&E committee members agreed.
11. RAR said that the feasibility of any new building due to
budget pressures and unfair funding decisions means that a
pause will be taken before any decisions are made.

Q&S will discuss if there are enough future students to
warrant creating extra capacity on GC'’s site.

12. Hirst — this is confidential.

7. Catering

7. SWA gave a verbal catering update:

1. OCS, the new caterers started in August, mobilisation
was successful, they took over the kitchens on 27/8/24
when staff returned, it has been going well with only minor
issues including staffing issues.

2. The catering areas have been rebranded.

3. Staff and students have given positive feedback

4. OCS operations area manager and an executive
development chef have been supporting on site, SWA has
made them aware that she is concerned about what will
happen when they leave, due to staff capabilities.

5. There are queues which usually move quickly, queuing
was never an issue before because the previous catering
offer was not popular.

6. LWI asked if the new catering is a better offer — it is
cheaper, better quality and more choice.

MBR said that CLT support to manage queues at lunchtime
and the catering staff need to upskill because the food is
now cooked from scratch on site.

7. LWI asked if it is a cost neutral contract — it is, and they
have projected £9000 surplus for GC in year 1, OCS sales
are on target.

Page 7 of 10




Free College Meals are down because the college is still
working through the process to get students onto this, OCS
budgeted £8000 per month, GC is forecasting £10,000 per
month return.

8. In their presentation OCS said that GC would become a
flagship operation, their Operations Director and Group
Business Director have already visited GC.

9. Environmental Health visit (30/9/24) awarded 5 stars.

F&E committee members agreed that it is a good start.

8. New Build Risk
Register

The New Build Risk Register and Summary was considered
by committee members, previously circulated.

RAR asked if A&R committee had any issues with the risk
register — SWA said they didn’t.

9. Procurement
Updates

There were no procurement updates.

Waste management and estate management (particularly
compliance and PPM) will be big tenders this year. The
existing contracts have been in place for several years.

10. Policies to
review

1. Fees & Charges Policy -

ESFA asked GC to change the Fees & Charges policy to
explain that the college asks for a voluntary contribution for
items such as student lanyards.

ESFA received a complaint about GC’s policy from a parent
because the wording of ‘voluntary’ was not used in the
policy.

F&E committee members approved the Fees & Charges
Policy.

2. Treasury Management Policy —

LME has added a section covering environmental
sustainability in response to MUS asking for sustainability to
be considered in the policy.

3. Procurement Policy -

1. SWA confirmed that the updates around social,
economic, and environmental benefits have been added to
the policy as requested, together with changes to wording
agreed at F&E 17/6/24.

2. RAR asked the Clerk to update the Schemes of
Delegation for Corporation meeting 14/10/24 to reflect the
new procurement policy.

3. JHO asked if there is a system in place to ensure the
college complies with the Procurement policy. SWA said
there is a suite of documents to support the process, and
procurement will be audited during AY 2024/25.

Clerk

Page 8 of 10




SWA said that MBR has overall responsibility for the
procurement process, and this is captured in the policy.

4. ABA asked about the progress of new financial software
which when installed should ensure compliance to our
procurement process — LME said procuring new financial
software is at demonstration stage.

5. MBR will create a flowchart for governors around the
Strategic Plan, she is going to move the four college
strategic plans together with Finance and HR into one
overall strategic plan.

The directors will create an operational plan which will detail
how the KPIs will be achieved., these will be built into the
performance management of each director.

ABA asked how often this will be refreshed — this will be
annually.

In response to ABA’s question, these will be cross college
documents supporting teaching and support staff.

ABA asked how this will be measured — through KPIs and
performance management.

RAR said that an aspect of the Strategic Plans will come to
each Corporation meeting for governor discussion after the
new Strategic Plan is in place.

ABA asked for communication to all governors explaining
the revamp of the Strategic Plans.

The new Strategic Plan will be presented at Corporation
9/12/24.

F&E committee members approved the Procurement
policy.

Clerk for
agendas

11. Amended
Terms of
Reference

The annual review of the F&E Terms of Reference,
previously circulated, all changes are highlighted.

Following a recommendation from the external governance
review the ToR has been changed to include associate
governors in committee quoracy and to have voting rights in
committees.

‘Outside legal or professional advice can be sought by the
committee if considered necessary’ has also been added to
the ToR.

JHO asked if seeking legal advice is for the F&E members’
judgement — it is.

JHO asked about the write off rules — DfE permission is
required for anything over £5000, LME gave examples of
potentially writing off invoices and assets.

F&E committee members approved the F&E Terms of
Reference.

RAR drew F&E committee members attention to the new
cover sheet which will be attached to all papers presented
at Corporation and committee meetings. MBR has adapted
the document considering recommendations from the
External Governance Review.

Page 9 of 10




RAR asked the clerk to return papers to CLT if they do not
have a cover sheet, and the CLT paper and cover sheet
should be combined into one document.

JHO asked if RKI has left the Corporation board — RKI and
EGI stepped down over the summer.

Governor recruitment is currently underway. A new external
governor will be ratified at Corporation 14/10/24, replacing
EGI.

RAR spoke to several A1 parents at the recent parents
evening, and several expressions of interest have been
submitted. The intention is to have a pipeline of associate
governors who can become full governors when vacancies
arise.

12. Any other
business

JHO asked about the new car park management system.
Governors must ensure the correct registration is logged
with GC and there is an iPad in reception to register visitor
car park registrations. The management company does not
cover the reception car park.

CKN asked if GC receives any income from the fines — we
do not, but there is a pay and display option at Park Avenue
between 6pm and 6am, weekends and school holidays. GC
keeps this parking revenue.

LWI asked how much money has been made from parking
— this was implemented in September, and the first monthly
statement is due shortly.

13. Confidentiality

Hirst Building.
Highfields.

14. Date next mtg

Next F&E; Monday 11 November 24, joint meeting at
College

Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 25/10/24

Approved & signed by Chair, John Holroyd on 11/11/24

Page 10 of 10




